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Michael Van Veghten made his first land purchase -- site of
the house -- in 1694 and baptized a child "at the Raritans" in 1699.
It is clear that he had some form of dwelling during these years.

The Early Brick House -- Prior to 1722

Part of the extant dwelling was in existence at this location
by 1722, for it appears on a map prepared that year for property in
the area. One long wall (south facade) and one gable wall (west)
survive, indicating a structure 22 by 25 feet, story and a half high
and two bays wide. 1In dimensions and in height it can be considered
typical of a Lowlander's house in Somerset County during the period
of settlement at the beginning of the 18th century.

Certain features of the facade tend to confirm the early
date of construction. The brickwork is laid in Flemish bond with
black glazed headers. Later in the century in Somerset County it
was unusual to have these color contrasts. Wide-spanned segmental
arches of brick voussoirs are mounted well above the window heads,
not as integral weight-bearing elements of the walls as is custom-
arily seen in later usage, but rather as a decorative feature.
Arched window heads did not come into general use in Somerset County
until the 1740's. There is a possibility that the fenestration
consisted of double casement windows, a belief fostered by the still
evident size of the original openings (later bricked in), which were
more square in shape and about half the width again of the present
large windows.

On this same wall is exhibited still another feature that
is associated with early "Dutch" building practice - the attachment
of iron beam anchors to the long wall of masonry houses for
strengthening purposes, and at the same time made a decorative
element. There are several examples of this practice on early
houses of upper New York State, but in Somerset :County this is rare.
Those on the Van Veghten House provide an attractive embellishment.
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In Somerset stone was the common choice for masonry houses,
as evidenced by the real estate advertisements and by other surviving
pre-1750 houses. Brick construction did not come into its own until
the late 18th century.

The early walls rise from a fieldstone foundation that projects
slightly, creating in effect a water table. The bulkhead, with
replacement doors and hinges, is located against the facade. A
second outside stairway was cut into the opposite facade at an
unknown date prior to the time the 19th century exterior trim
was added. This bulkhead has since been removed and the opening
closed with bricks.

The early 18th century construction is visible in the cellar.
The adzed floor timbers measure approximately 11" x 9" and are
spaced about four feet apart. About two-thirds in from the long
wall thick stone piers, possibly 22" wide, divide the cellar into
compartments. Of different lengths, one juts perpendicularly from
the gable wall, and the other is free-standing, with a space of
about eight feet between them. These piers do not now serve as
bearing walls. The east pier was later extended with a brick wall
when the original house was doubled in size. In one corner, traces
remain of the foundation wall for the original east gable. 1In the
compartmented space back of the piers square bricks serve as
flooring.

The chimney base is centered on the gable wall. Wide, deep,
and vaulted, it is constructed of salmon-colored bricks seemingly
laid up in Flemish bond (although this fact is hard to determine
because of the deteriorated condition of the bricks and the remains
of a coat of whitewash).
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The original wide floorboards of the first floor still remian
in place, but can only be seen from the cellar, for a modern floor
has been laid. The boards were cut out to make them lie flat over
the girts. The floorboards of the second story, seemingly of the
same age, may have been relaid. They rest on the heavy, hewn
timbers that are anchored to the exterior wall.

The Second House (by enlargement), circa 1760 (?)

The HABS survey made in 1940 felt that the existing house
could have been built before 1779 (the year of General Nathaneal
Greene's occupancy) or c. 1830-40, the period represented
stylistically by the decor.

As it stands today, the house is a two-and-a-half-story
rectangular box, with a matching two-and-a-half-story wing of lower
height. The new walls of the main block, including an entirely new
north facade, are laid in common bond, with clapboards filling
the gable peaks. The boarding on the east wall extends further
downward, covering part of the second story level. This is the wall
to which the kitchen wing is attached. Within the attic of the
wing, the wall is found to be of brick. The facade is symmetrically
composed with five bays but lacks a central window over the front
entrance, an omission that seems to hint at an enlargement in
stages. The new walls are mounted over a similar stone foundation
but are not set back in the manner of the original walls. Those
portions of walls added above the Flemish-bond sections, however,
are set back some four inches, conspicuously creating two planes.
Doubtless the change in bond created a thinner wall, but no effort
was made to conceal the transition. The later brickwork is not
crisp and cleanly delineated, leading to the speculation that
perhaps the bricks were reused.
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The fenestration consists of double sash, the upper fixed,
containing 12/12 panes on the main floor and 12/8 above. The
entranceway lacks a formal architrave, and the door is recessed.

The shallow jambs and soffit are filled with single, recessed panels
outlined with heavy applied moulding, in Greek Revival style. The
effect of a multipaned transom over the door has been created by
placing nonfunctional muntins over a single sheet of glass.

The floor plan basically is that of a center-hall house with
four rooms to a floor, but more recent changes have modified the
space distribution. The interior walls and ceilings are of lath
construction, plastered over.

The cellar of the east half of the house differs, but not
markedly, from that of the original section. The remaining original
timbers are almost of the same size and are placed about the same
distance from center. The chimney base is of solid stone, with
boulders more noticeable protruding near the floor. Next to the
base, there is an opening in the foundation wall to give admittance
to the crawlspace under the present kitchen wing. In this crawl-
space can be seen two wood steps, the only survivors from a flight
that once ran from the floor above to the outside. This exterior
stairway was made useless when the wing was enlarged to its present
size.

The attic is reached by an enclosed single-run flight of
stairs located in the middle of the house above the main flight.
Its entry door has been turned 90 degrees to face the side hall to
allow for the enclosing of a new bathroom. The joists that support
the attic floor are sawn. The floorboards range in size between 16
and 22 inches. A few contain Roman numerals. The roof is supported
on rafters approximately 3 x 4 inches, pegged and numbers. The
attic and roof were constructed c. 1830-40. The brick chimney at
the west gable end and its paired single-sash windows of 6 panes
each are later replacements.
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Argument can be found to support the 18th century date.
The manner in which the original walls were raised to two-story
height would not have mattered to a society accustomed to frank
expression of building components but would hardly seem acceptable
to the architecturally sophisticated of the next century. The
installation of 12/12 and 12/8 sash also better suits the earlier
date for such old-fashioned windows would have been a stylistic
anachronism for an entirely new house planned as a Greek Revival
showpiece.

Since the house was large enough to accommodate General Greene,
his wife, and his aides during the Middlebrook Encampment in 1778-79,
it seems believable that it had acquired its two-story spaciousness
by that date. The inventory taken following the death of Van
Veghten in 1781 indicates a house of several rooms, and a stair
landing large enough to contain a "chist."

The Greek Revival House, circa 1837

Today, the main house basically reflects the taste of the
1830's -- bold, simplified elements of style recalling Greek
classicism. The window and door openings on both long sides are
punctuated by heavy ocak lintels, those on the upper floor seeming to
crowd the rather flatly molded board cornice. The front entrance is
characteristic of the style. Almost all of the doors, including the
two entrance doors, consist of two recessed, vertical panels trimmed
with wide mouldings. The interior window architraves have typical
large-scale mouldings and plain, plastered jambs. The baseboards
stand 7-12 inches high.

All four mantelpieces are Greek Revival in style: the two
most ornate, with detached stout columns and paneled friezes, are to
found in the two main-floor rooms. That in the master bedroom (now
library) is only slightly different, having paneled pilaster strips
rather than columns. The fireplace openings are shallow, with
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splayed brick jambs and forward-angled backs. The hearthstones
appear to be slate. 1In two instances, the floor of the fireplace
opening has been raised at the rear.

These motifs were probably introduced into an already existing
house when the ownership changed hands after the death of the second
Michael, son of Derrick, in 1831. For a few years the property
remained in sheriff's possession to satisfy a mortgage, and then
Michael's son Richard bought it back in 1837. He is the likely
remodeler.

The Kitchen Wing

The present kitchen wing originated as a one-and-a-half-story
structure narrower than the house proper, with symmetrically pitched
roof. The outline of the roof apex remains on the brick wall of the
east gable of the house. The wing is now a full two stories, with
an attic, but with lower ceilings than the main block. The original
rear wall was removed in order to extend the unit southward to a
distance several feet beyond the rear facade of the major structure.
Evidence of this extension can be seen in the attic and in the
crawlspace. Since the ridge line was not changed at the same time,
the roof now has an asymmetrical slope. The rafters are the same
size as those in the main house and are lapped, but nailed rather
than pinned.

The north (front) facade is on the same plane with the main
block and matches it in brickwork and oak-lintel trim, but the
windows are smaller and contain 1/1 sash.

There are two rooms on the main floor and four on the upper.
The cooking fireplace is 19th century vintage, framed with wide
boards, the horizontal member being carried over the adjacent wall
where the bake oven is located. A boxed-in winding stairway stands
on the opposite wall. The walls of this room have wide, beaded
wainscotting almost to the ceiling and a plain thick-edged chair-
rail. The same kind of vertical boarding is seen in the small front
bedroom on the upper floor.
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The oldest feature found in this unit are three doors with
imprecise raised panels and ovolo moulding. Two contain five
panels. They are thicker-stiled than the typical 18th century door,
and one contains the outline of a Suffolk latch. All now have
small, square, iron boxlocks. These doors may be survivors of the
pre-1830's interior, "recycled" in the wing. Otherwise, most of the
woodwork fits the period 1840-60,

Porches, post-1850

There are three porches: a veranda, with lamb's tongue wood
posts on stone bases and a wood, shed roof, c. 1860; a porch at
the rear entrance of the main block, c. 1880; and a more recent,
screened side porch attached to the wing. (01d photos show it as an
open porch, with shed roof).

Shutters

The recessed-panel shutters have been removed and are now
stored in the attic. The pintles still remain in place.
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While operating his business in town, he apparantly had all
the help he needed to run the F?ET' as his will inventory lists more
than two dozen black servants.

Derrick Van Veghten was a staunch patriot of the American
cause. When General Greene and his troops occupied the property
during the Middlebrook Encampment, he gladly sacrified his privacy
and shared what he had. According to his obituary,

"This gentleman possessed the virtues of patriotism

and hospitality to a high degree; - warmly attached

to the cause of his country, he took... pleasure in
rendering it any service in his power, and when his
property was very essentially injured by the winter
quarters of a division of our army being affixed on his
possessions, like a good citizen, he submitted without
repining, to suf{gf as an individual, to promote the
public good..."

Of course, the single most important fact about the Ven Veghten
house is that Gen?qgé)Nathanael Greene lived here during the
winter of 1778/9.

As to the old house itself, its significance has several
aspects. It is undoubtedly important in that it represents one
of the few remaining Raritan River mansions. The seventeenth
century Codrington house and Cornelius Van Horne's "Kells Hall,"
both built along the north bank of the river to the east, are
long gone without trace, and the only other survivors which could
possibly be considered "river mansions" are the 01d Dutch Parsonage,
the Frelinghuysen house and the TenEyck house, all to the west.
(Michael Van Veghten used the term "mansion house lot" in conveying
the property to a grantee in 1797).
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Another aspect of the houses's uniqueness is that of the
brick construction. There are few early brick houses in Somerset
County. Apparently considered a "prestige" building material, the
brick homes in the area of early vintage are the 0l1d Dutch Parsonage
and the Frelinghuysen house (both National Register.) These were
both built as two-story structures, but the early brick section of
the Van Veghten House was a one-story house. 1In this earliest
section, the bricks are laid up in Flemish bond with glazed headers,
and the window arches, still preserved on the river side, are
obviously very early.

In 1797 Michael Van Veghten (b. 1764) sold the property (three
Bridgewater Township tracts including the 75-acre "homestead and
mansion house lot") to a Thomas Nesbitt.

The property was conveyed back to Michael by deed of April
7, 1817. Michael apparently resided in the house until his death in
1831.

After Michael's death the farm was seized to satisfy a mortgage
held by his son-in-law, Peter Z. Elmendorf (married to Michael's
daughter, Mary, or Maria), and a few years later in 1837, Michael's
son, Richard, was able to obtain it at a Sheriff's sale. 1In 1843
the farm was purchased from Richard by Charles G. Wilson and wife,
Fanny, of Hunterdon County.

The Wilsons sold the river mansion in 1853 (7) and moved to
a smaller house next door on the same farm tract.

John S. Schenck, the next owner, was an unscrupulous character,
as many court complaints are recorded against him. In 1862 he lost
the property claims for debts and damages, listed in great detail in
the indenture of March 8, 1862, when Caleb T. Ames acquired the
property at a Sheriff's sale. Although the farm passed out of
Schenck's hands on that date, he continued to harvest certain crops
throughout 1862.
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Ames kept the property until 1876, when it was purchased
by two women, Agnes J. Whitenack of Bernards Township and Mary H.
Horning of Bridgewater and their respective husbands. The property
stayed in their hands until 1897 when it came into the Meyer family.

At present the Van Veghten house is owned and used by the
Somerset County Historical Society which is at work in several
fields in a sincere and dedicated effort to make the stirring events
of yesterday meaningful and relevant to the people of today. This
work comprises in-depth research into the architectural evolvement
of the house, monthly programs held in the meeting-room to which the
public is invited without charge and the establishment of a library
available to scholars and interested readers.
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